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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2)

(Resolution 3)
(Resolution 4)

(Resolution 5)

(Resolution 6)

(Resolution 7)

(Resolution 8)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Third Annual General Meeting (“23rd AGM”) of Oriental Food Industries 
Holdings Berhad will be convened and held at Tiara Banquet Hall, Tiara Melaka Golf and Country Club, Jalan Gapam, 
Bukit Katil, 75760 Melaka on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 at 2.30 p.m. to transact the following businesses:-

A G E N D A

ORDINARY BUSINESS

together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.
  

year ended 31 March 2019.
  

Directors’ fees) up to an amount of RM135,000.00 to the Directors with effect from 29 

4. To re-elect the following Directors, each of whom retires by rotation in accordance with 
Article 75 of the Constitution of the Company:-

 4.1 Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain 
 4.2 Mr Lim Hwa Yu 
  

ending 31 March 2020 and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

  
6. 

 “THAT Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain who has served the Board as an Independent Non-

since 8 June 2000 be and is hereby retained and will continue to act as the Independent 

 
7. 

 “THAT Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock who has served the Board as an Independent Non-

since 14 May 2007 be and is hereby retained and will continue to act as the Independent 

 
8. 

Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years since 23 
February 1999 be and is hereby retained and will continue to act as the Independent Non-
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(Resolution 9)

(Resolution 10)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

9. 

 “THAT subject always to the Companies Act, 2016 (“the Act”), the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), the Company’s 
Constitution and the approval of the relevant government/regulatory authorities, the 
Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Act to 
issue and allot new shares in the Company at any time at such price, upon such terms and 
conditions, for such purposes and to such person(s) whomsoever as the Directors may in 

10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being AND THAT the 
Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval from Bursa Securities for the 
listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued AND THAT such authority shall 
commence immediately upon the passing of this Resolution and continue to be in force until 

10. 

 “THAT authority be and is hereby given in line with Paragraph 10.09 of the Main Market 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities for the Company and/or its subsidiaries to 
enter into any of the transactions falling within the types of the Recurrent Related Party 
Transactions, particulars of which are set out in Part A, Circular to Shareholders dated 
31 July 2019, with the Related Parties as described in the said Circular, provided that 
such transactions are of revenue or trading nature, which are necessary for the day-to-day 
operations of the Company and/or its subsidiaries within the ordinary course of business 
of the Company and/or its subsidiaries, made on an arm’s length basis and on normal 
commercial terms which are generally available to the public and are not detrimental to the 
minority shareholders of the Company;

 AND THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing of this Resolution 
until:

lapse, unless by Ordinary Resolution passed at a general meeting, the authority is 
renewed; or

may be allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act; or

iii. revoked or varied by a Resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at a 
general meeting,

 whichever is earlier.
 
 AND FURTHER, THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, 

to implement the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate with full power to assent to all or any 

by any relevant authorities or otherwise and to deal with all matters relating thereto and 

all such documents, agreements, arrangements and/or undertakings, with any party or 

complete, and give full effect to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate in the best interest of 
the Company.”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Resolution 11)11. 

 THAT, subject to the compliance with Section 127 of the Act, the provisions of the 
Constitution of the Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities 
and all other applicable laws, guidelines, rules  and regulations,  the Company be and 

ordinary shares in the Company as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the 
Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as 

that:-

total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company as quoted on Bursa Malaysia 
as at the point of purchase;

(where applicable) available at the time of the purchase(s); and

iii. the Board of Directors of the Company may decide either to retain the shares 
purchased as treasury shares or cancel the shares or retain part of the shares so 
purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder or to resell the shares or 
distribute the shares as dividend.

 THAT such authority shall commence upon the passing of this resolution and shall continue 
to be in force until:

unconditionally or subject to conditions; or

law to be held; or

c. revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company 
in general meeting,

 
 AND THAT authority be and is hereby given unconditionally and generally to the Board of 

without limitation, the opening and maintaining of central depository account(s) under 
Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, and the entering into all other 

and give full effect to the aforesaid purchase with full powers to assent to any conditions, 

authorities and with the fullest power to do all such acts and things thereafter (including 
without limitation, the cancellation and/or retention and/or distribution and/or selling of all 
or any part of the purchased shares in accordance with the Companies Act, 2016, the 
provisions of the Constitution of the Company and the requirements and/or guidelines of 
Bursa Securities for the Main Market and all other relevant governmental and/or regulatory 
authorities.”

12. To transact any other business of the Company which due notices shall be given in 
accordance with the Constitution of the Company and the Companies Act, 2016.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

(LS 0009542)
CHAN SAU LENG (MAICSA 7012211)

(LS 0010372)
Joint Secretaries
Selangor Darul Ehsan

31 July 2019

NOTES:

1. In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 20 August 2019 
(“General Meeting Record of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting.

authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

duly authorised.

Pusat Dagangan Dana 1, Jalan PJU 1A/46, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than twenty-four (24) hours 
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof as Paragraph 8.29(A) of the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities requires all resolutions set out in the Notice of General Meeting to be put to vote by poll.

meeting. 

 By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the AGM and/
or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s 
personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its 
agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof), and the preparation and 
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any adjournment thereof), 
and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines 
(collectively, the “Purposes”); (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) 
and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or 
representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) 
and/or representative(s) for the Purposes; and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any 
penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS:

 This agenda item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Act requires the 
Statutory Financial Statements to be laid at the AGM. As such, this agenda item does not require shareholders’ 
approval and hence, is not put forward for voting.

 

 Meeting Allowance for  RM500.00 per meeting RM500.00 per meeting Not Applicable
 attendance of Board and
 Board Committee Meetings, 
 and general meetings

 Monthly Claims  RM27,720.00 per annum Not Applicable Not Applicable

 At the same time, the Board of Directors also has recommended Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain, Datuk Jeffery 

for a cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years since 8 June 2000, 14 May 2007 and 23 February 1999 

through a two-tier voting process at the 23rd AGM of the Company.

 The Board of Directors has via the Nomination Committee conducted an annual performance evaluation and 

Main Market Listing Requirements, and therefore are able to bring independent and objective judgement to 
the Board;

ii. They have been with the Company for more than twelve (12) years and therefore understand the Company’s 
business operations which enable them to participate actively and contribute during deliberations or 
discussions at the Meetings;

decision making; and
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 The Resolution 9, if approved, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the above AGM, 

number of issued shares of the Company for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest 

Company.

 The Mandate is as renewal of the Mandate granted by the members at the last AGM held on 29 August 2018. 
The Mandate granted at the last AGM was not utilised by the Company and thus, no proceeds were raised.

 The Renewed Mandate will empower the directors to raise funds via issuance of new shares without delay, in 
the event of business opportunities arise.

 The Resolution 10, if approved, will enable the Company and its subsidiaries to continue entering into the 
recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature with Syarikat Perniagaan Chong Mah Sdn. 
Bhd., which are necessary for its day-to-day operations and are in the ordinary course of business and on terms 
not more favourable to the related party than those generally available to the public and are not detrimental to 
the minority shareholders of the Company. This authority unless revoked or varied at a General Meeting will 

 Further information on the proposed Ordinary Resolution No. 10 is set out in Part A, Circular to Shareholders 
dated 31 July 2019 which is dispatched together with the Annual Report 2019 of the Company. 

Company from time to time on the market of Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as the Board of 

 Further information on the proposed Ordinary Resolution No. 11 is set out in Part B, Statement to Shareholders 
in relation to the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority dated 31 July 2019 which is dispatched 
together with the Annual Report 2019 of the Company. 

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF 
TWENTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. Resolution 3 and 4- Re-election of Directors
 
 The Directors who are retiring pursuant to Article 75 of the Constitution of the Company and seeking for re-

election at the forthcoming 23rd AGM are as follows:

 (a) Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain 
 (b) Mr Lim Hwa Yu

where applicable, are set out in the Analysis of Shareholdings section appearing on pages 13 to 15 and 118 to 120 
respectively of the Company’s Annual Report respectively.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I am pleased to report that that Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad (“the Company” or “the Group”) 

sustainable value for our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the 2019 Annual Report detailing a 
comprehensive report to our shareholders, on the activities, results and strategies of our Company.

The Group achieved another milestone in terms of 

year ended 31 March 2019 (“FY 2019”). Revenue 
sustained on a year-on-year basis at RM286.5 million in 

year ended 2018 (“FY 2018”)

The Group’s revenue was derived primarily from the 
Snack Food and Confectioneries segment, representing 
100% of the Group’s total revenue. 

sales.

2018. The Group recorded an increase of 125% from 
RM8.2 million in FY 2018 to RM18.6 million in FY 2019. 

under review achieved encouraging growth of 3% in snack 
category, outperforming the growth in sales of cakes and 
potato crisps. This growth was particularly spurred by the 
rising trend of sales for our snack products.

Despite all challenges, the Group achieved satisfactory 
total net comprehensive income attributable to the 
shareholders of RM13.9 million in FY 2019. This 
translates to basic earnings per share of 5.78 sen.

In terms of our balance sheet, total loans and borrowings 
stood at nominal amount of RM25.8 million against the 
backdrop of shareholders’ fund of RM189.6 million and 
cash and bank balances of RM9.5 million. The Group’s 

maintaining this uptrend. 

Group, the total dividend payout for the year amounted to 

The dividend policy of paying a minimum of 35% of net 

shareholders will be able to consistently enjoy the returns 
in correspondence with the future growth of the Group. 

With the completion of the new manufacturing plant and 
acquisition of new production machineries, the Company 

new types of products and enhance the quality, taste 
and get-up of the current products with the new and 
advanced technology and fully automated production 
lines to accommodate both local and overseas demands.

products under the brand name “Zess” to the market and 
the snack food and confectionery business remained as 
the household names of consumers particularly brands 
like “Jacker” and Super Ring”. Although competition in the 
food retail market continued to increase, the Company 
still managed to retain its position as one of the leading 
snack food and confectionery manufacturers. 
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

At OFIH we believe that one of the key drivers is the 

customers. Surveys are periodically conducted on 
customer satisfaction.

Here at OFIH, the Top Management are hands-on in the 
day-to-day management of the Group. The Research 
and Development (“R&D”) division of the Group will 
continue to place emphasis on research and investment 
on packaging design. 

Together with our continued investment in R&D, 
infrastructure and our people, this will help us create 
long term value for our shareholders.

The Company has been actively connecting with 
consumers through social media network on promotions, 
product launches, contest and other activities which 
have been very successful.  

On the regional front, the Group plans to appoint 
more distributors in major oversea markets. Presently, 
Oriental’s products are sold to more than 40 countries, 
including highly-discerning consumer markets such as 
Japan and Australia.

Armed with the ISO 9001, ISO 22000, Food Safety and 
HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point) 

improve its product quality to keep up with the ever-
demanding international health standards.

Apart from the above, the Company ensures that it 
manufactures only Halal products which have been 

Malaysia (“JAKIM”) and the relevant recognized Islamic 
authorities.  

The Group recognizes that it needs to give back to the 
communities in which it operates in. This is evident 
through its corporate philanthropy efforts and emphasis 
on health, safety and environmental standards as detailed 
on pages 19 to 28 under Sustainability Statement.

The Group also practices gender equality, ethical labour 
policies and creating a safe workplace environment.
 

The Board is committed towards upholding the values of 
corporate governance by embracing the principles and 
best practices set out in the Malaysian Code of Corporate 
Governance.

The Board has recently incorporated the following 
policies which can be viewed at the Company’s corporate 

Board Charter
Code of Conduct
Whistle-Blowing Policy 
Nomination and Election Process of Board Members
Board Remuneration Policy
Corporate Disclosure Policy
Corporate Social Responsibility, Environmental and 
Sustainability Policy

I would like to thank our Board of Directors for their 

also appreciative of our Top Management and senior 
management team.
 
In conclusion, I would like to thank our staff for their 
dedication and contributions to the OFIH Group. Last but 

our shareholders, clients, consultants, suppliers, partners 
and business associates for their unwavering support.

Chairman

9

n

bour 
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OFM
100%

OFI
100%

OFIP
99.9%

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad (“OFIH”) was incorporated on 8 June 1996 in Malaysia under the Companies 
Act, 1965 as a public limited company. OFIH was listed on the Second Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
in August 2000 and subsequently transferred to the Main Board on 13 October 2003. Currently OFIH is listed on the 
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
 
OFIH is principally an investment holding company with a group of subsidiaries that are engaged in the following 
activities:    
 
 

  100 Manufacturing and marketing of
       snack food, confectionery and  
      biscuit products

 99.99 Property Development.

  100 Sales and marketing of snack 
      food, confectionery and biscuit  
      products. 

Major Subsidiaries

Subsidiary of Oriental Food Industries Sdn. Bhd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan bin Husain (Chairman)
Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan Group Managing Director

 

CORPORATE INFORMATION

 

Karina Chong Mei Ying (LS 0009542)
Chan Sau Leng  (MAICSA 7012211)
Ruzeti Emar Binti Mohd Rosli (LS 0010372)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 8 Symphony House
Block D13 Pusat Dagangan Dana 1
Jalan PJU1A/46
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel : +603 7841 8000

SHARE REGISTRAR

Sectrars Management Sdn Bhd
Lot 9-7, Menara Sentral Vista

50470 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Tel : +603 2276 6138

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young (AF 0039)

CORPORATE HEAD OFFICE

No. 65, Jalan Usaha 7
Air Keroh Industrial Estate
75450 Melaka
Tel  : +606 231 0333

  : www.jacker.com.my

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
CIMB Bank Berhad

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

OFI

STOCK CODE

7107
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

     

  Cost of sales    (180.47)  (181.09)  (200.91)  (230.28)  (235.29)

  Other operating income  2.91   6.28   4.83   1.10   3.91 
  Selling and distribution cost  (22.33)  (22.64)  (20.72)  (27.79)  (14.66)

  Finance cost    (0.18)  (0.44)  (0.54)  (0.88)  (1.06)

  

  Non-controlling Interest  -     0.02   (0.01)  -     -   

  9.50   12.50   4.00   3.50   1.50 
  8.96 10.61 7.60 4.67 5.78

  7.63   9.01   9.32   9.94   11.96 
   60.00   240.00   240.00   240.00   240.00 

  EBITDA     33.23   41.51   32.92   19.08   31.57 

‘15 ‘16 ‘17 ‘18 ‘19‘15 ‘16 ‘17 ‘18 ‘19

REVENUE (RM’mil)

286.54

EARNING PER SHARE (Sen)

NET COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (RM’mil)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (RM’mil)

DIVIDEND PER SHARE (Sen)

18.55

1.50

13.87

5.78

237.03
244.92

256.08

288.31

‘15 ‘16 ‘17 ‘18 ‘19

8.96

10.61

7.60

4.67
‘15 ‘16 ‘17 ‘18 ‘19

21.51

25.46

18.24

11.20

25.42

32.06

23.06

8.26

9.5

12.5

4.0

3.5

‘15 ‘16 ‘17 ‘18 ‘19
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PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

75 years of age/Male/Malaysian
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

on 8 June 2000. He is also a member of the Risk Management and Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and 
Remuneration Committee.

Tan Sri Azizan is currently the Chairman of other private companies.

Tan Sri Azizan holds a B. A. Honours Degree and Diploma in Public Administration from the University of Malaya and 
a Post Graduate Diploma in Economics and Master in Urban and Regional Planning from the University of Colorado, 
Boulder, United States of America. 

Tan Sri Azizan started his career with the Ministry of Agriculture in 1967 and retired in 1999 as the Secretary-General 

various departments in the civil service. During his years with the Government Service, he has served as Assistant 
Secretary with the Centre for Development Studies and Economic Planning Unit in Prime Minister’s Department, 
Director of Economic Planning Unit, Sabah, Sabah State Director of Development, Deputy Secretary-General with 
Ministry of Land and Regional Development, Deputy Director-General (Sectoral) Economic Planning Unit with Prime 
Minister’s Department, Director of Public Sector Companies Monitoring Division in the Ministry of Finance and Deputy 
Secretary-General (Operation) with the Ministry of Finance.

Tan Sri Azizan does not hold shares in the Company and is not related to any Director and/or major shareholders of 

72 years of age/ Male/Malaysian
Group Managing Director

Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan (“Datuk Seri Son”) was appointed to the Board since 8 June 2000 and is currently the 
Group Managing Director. 

Datuk Seri Son is the founder of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). He is the driving force of the Group. 

and implements the Group’s corporate strategy. He also develops new products for both local and overseas market, 
ensuring that the quality of products and packaging are high, keeping close contact with the local and overseas 
distributors to obtain suggestions and feedback on the OFI products. Datuk Son had through the years fostered close 
relationships with the suppliers and customers.

Datuk Seri Son is related to Datuk Son Tong Leong (son) and Datuk Son Tong Eng (son). He is a substantial 
shareholder in the Company by virtue of his direct and indirect interests in the shareholdings held by himself and 
his children and via his shareholding in Apendo Capital Sdn. Bhd. and Summer Legend Sdn. Bhd. Other than the 
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PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

49 years of age/ Male/Malaysian

Datuk Son Tong Leong was appointed to the Board on 8 June 2000. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business from 
the Edith Cowan University, Australia.

He began his career in 1994 as the Factory Manager of OFI and was promoted to General Manager of the Company 

the overall corporate administration, human resources, marketing and operations of the Company. He has maintains 

oversees the factory operations and ensures that production activities are carried out smoothly in compliance with the 
ISO and HACCP standards. 

He is a shareholder of the Company and is related to Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan (father) and Datuk Son Tong Eng 

48 years of age/ Male/Malaysian
Executive Director

Datuk Son Tong Eng was appointed to the Board on 8 June 2000. He holds a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from 
the Federal Institute of Technology, Kuala Lumpur.

oversees the factory operations and human resource related matters.

He is a shareholder of the Company and is related to Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan (father) and Datuk Son Tong Leong 

63 years of age/ Male/Malaysian
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lim Hwa Yu (“Mr. Lim”) was appointed to the Board on 23 February 1999. He is also a member of the Risk 

Accountants.  

planning and management. 

Mr. Lim does not hold shares in the Company and is not related to any Director and/or major shareholder of the 
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PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

68 years of age/ Male/Malaysian
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock (“Datuk Jeffery”) was appointed to the Board on 14 May 2007. He also serves as a 
member of the Risk Management and Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Datuk Jeffery is an Associate of the Institute of Business Administration, Australia and was formerly the Senior 

Welfare, Training, Employee Relations and Government Relations. He currently serves as the Council Member of 
the Federation of Malaysian Manufacturers (“FMM”), Chairman of FMM Malacca Branch, Member of the Malaysian 
Institute of Management, Member of the Malaysian Institute of Personnel Management and Member of the Malacca 
Industrial Skills Development Centre. Datuk Jeffery was a Former Board Member of OSH National Council, Panel 
Member of the Industrial Court and the SOCSO Appellate Court. 

Datuk Jeffery does not hold shares in the Company and is not related to any Director and/or major shareholder of 

68 years of age/ Male/Malaysian
Non Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lim Keat Sear was appointed to the Board on 8 June 2000. He also serves as a member of the Nomination 
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He has been in the snack and confectionery business for more than twenty (20) years. He joined Syarikat Perniagaan 
Chong Mah Sdn. Bhd., a distributor of snack food and confectionery in 1973 and became a director of the Company 
in 1978.

He is a substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue of his direct and indirect interest via Syarikat Perniagaan 
Chong Mah Sdn. Bhd., Thung Shung (M) Sdn. Bhd. and Summer Legend Sdn. Bhd and is not related to any of the 
Directors of the Company. Other than the recurrent related party transactions as disclosed in page 123, he does not 
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PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

48 years of age/Female/Malaysian
Group Company Secretary

She holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the University of London and is a Registered License Secretary with the 

She is in charge of the secretarial, legal, corporate, human resources and administration matters and reports to the 
Directors of the Group. She is also the Joint Company Secretary of the Group.

She does not hold shares in the Company and is not related to any Director and/or major shareholders of the Company. 

50 years of age/Female/Malaysian
Group Accountant

Ms Yap Siew Kuan joined the Company on 15 January 2015. She was a graduate from Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants and is a member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. She has twenty-seven (27) years 

She does not hold shares in the Company and is not related to any Director and/or major shareholders of the Company. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad (“the Company” or “the Group”) has made its mark in the snack food and 
confectionery manufacturing industry today as one of the companies holding the leading position in the said industry 
in Malaysia. 

(5) broad categories, which are snack food, wafer, biscuits, potato snacks and bakery products. 

The Group has various product brand names, most of which are commercially strong generating the required sales 

names in Malaysia.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Despite undergoing a challenging year in 2018, the Group has managed to secure a continued growth in revenue as 

  
Revenue     286,548 288,310  (1,762)        (0.6)

Financial Costs         1,061        882    (179) (20.3)

Shareholders’ Fund   189,598 184,890   4,708           2.5
Total Assets    256,057 251,610 4,447 1.8
Borrowings      25,800   23,360    (2,440) (10.4)

Debt/ Equity (%)      19.7 22.9  
Earnings Per Share (sen)     5.78  4.67  
Net Assets Per Share (sen)     0.79  0.77  

REVENUE

million on revenue.

Revenue information based on the geographical location of customers is as follows:

  
Malaysia     101,617 35 106,698 37 
Asia      129,136        45 125,268        43 
Others     55,795 20 56,344 20
  
Total reported segments  286,548 100 288,310 100
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NET PROFIT

stood at 5.78 sen.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Net tangible asset per share, attributable to owner improved to RM0.79 (2018: RM0.77). Gearing ratio of the Group 

DIVIDEND

The Group constantly declare a dividend payout for every quarter for the past years. Total dividend declared for the 

2020, despite facing various challenges of competitive markets.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad (“OFIH” or “the Company”) recognises that sustainability involves the 
proactive approach by the Company to play a part in maintaining and improving the present generation’s quality of 
life and at the same time work towards protecting the future generations to enhance their quality of life. OFIH has 
always believed that in order to sustain economic and social growth, social considerations has to be adhered to while 
ensuring minimal impact on the environment. 

In line with Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Sustainability Reporting Guide, OFIH’s sustainability framework 

Company’s corporate governance framework and corporate social responsibilities.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

The management and operations of OFIH Group as a whole is under the supervision and leadership of Datuk Seri 

Management are assisted by the Senior Management, Departmental Managers and Head of Departments in the day-
to-day operations of the OFIH Group.

 
      biscuit products.

 
      products.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

The core business of the Company is manufacturing and marketing of snack food, confectionery and biscuit products. 
The products are being sold locally and overseas.

In an effort to preserve shareholders’ interest, OFIH strives to maintain high standards of corporate ethics and strict 

This is because OFIH believes that high standard of integrity, honesty and accountability are the fundamental keys 
for a sustainable business. 

OFIH places great importance in the safety and quality of all its products that is accessible to the entire population.

strengthen its footing in receiving worldwide recognition for food safety and quality assurance.

With the above in place, the Group strives to provide safe and affordable food products to its consumers. 
 

The Research and Development (“R&D”) Team is led by Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan. The Group does not only strive 
to stay relevant in the industry through its R&D efforts but is also able to anticipate changes in consumer preferences. 

biscuit products.  

Apart from concentrating on the quality of the products, packaging too has been the main focus of the R&D team. It 
is one of the main aspects in protecting the food products and indirectly supports the environment without damage 
and waste.

As always, the Group values its shareholders who have supported and invested in the Company; many of whom have 
remained with the Company throughout these years. The Board looks forward to meet its valued shareholders during 
Annual General Meetings to provide clearer insights of the Group’s performance, position and future plans. Apart from 
that, the shareholders and investors are also able to check on the announcements and performance of the Company 

results, listing announcements, change of corporate information, general meetings and other relevant information are 
being uploaded regularly. Furtherance to that, there is also a contact email in OFIH’s website for the shareholders to 
air their views, enquiries and comments. Other than investor relation matters, product information and other activities 
are also uploaded on the said website.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is headed by an effective board which assume responsibility for its leadership and control and is collectively 
responsible for promoting its success by directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively 
in the best interests of the Group through good Corporate Governance practices.

The Group has ensured that the Policies and Procedures are in place to strengthen its corporate governance drive 
as well as being an effective tool to guide the Management and all its stakeholders relating to the following areas:

– Whistle Blowing Procedures
– Employees Career Development
– Grievance Handling
– Risk Management 

The Group ensures that risks to health and safety from work activities are properly controlled and the efforts to do the 
same are beyond regulatory compliance.

The Management focuses in embedding and promoting good workplace health and safety practices. Adequate 

and enforce at its workplace the Occupational Safety, Health and Environmental Policy in line with the Occupational 
Safety and Health Act 1994. 

In the pursuit of the above, the Group implements practical strategies to achieve its Occupational Safety, Health 
and Environmental Policy (“OSHE”) Mission Statement where the Company has the core responsibility to ensure the 
Safety, Health and Environment of all company’s employees, contractors and visitors.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

ensure that the premises are maintained as a safe environment of work.

reduce the possibility of harm on the employees, visitors and contractors.

in the initial stage of their employment.

ensure their safety and health at workplace.

health and environment of Company’s employees, visitors and contractors.

OFIH views the Safety, Health and Environment of its employees, contractors and Company visitors as an important 
agenda alike to maintain a business machinery to drive the Company towards achieving its organisational and 
corporate objectives.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

that efforts to ensure environmental preservation are an important business challenge and believes that it is its 
responsibility as a manufacturer to observe all applicable environmental laws and regulations. 

OFIH capitalises its corporate citizen role to promote environmental preservation by taking environmental protection 
measures and considerations in its day-to-day manufacturing operations and at the same time ensures compliance 
with the legal and regulatory requirements of the Malaysian Department of Environment (“DOE”), other regulators 
and authorities. 

 The Company continues the use of natural gas in all its manufacturing processes for the reason that it is 
known to be environment friendly as it burns cleanly without the emission of any harmful gas, lowest in carbon 

 

from its processes undergo physical treatment followed by chemical treatment and subsequently biological 

environment. 

 In the day-to-day production processes, waste is inevitable. However, the Management is constantly looking into 
waste minimisation by establishing processes and practices intended to reduce the amount of waste produced 
in its efforts to promote sustainability practices in waste management.

 In support of the Melaka State Government’s Go Green initiative, the Company is currently in talks with the 
Melaka Green Technology Corporation pertaining to the management of waste cooking oil under the its Biodiesel 
Programme.

 The Company ensures that disposal of all its manufacturing waste are being handled by government approved 
and licensed contractors.
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 The Group believes that it is essential for corporate citizens to give back to society. Although charity is a totally 
voluntary choice, however, OFIH Group has chosen to be proactive in charity to the best of its ability and 
resources.

 Similarly in the past years, the Company had participated in many philanthropy and volunteer programmes 
throughout 2018 and 2019. Below are a few events of the many which the Company had participated.

 The Company has taken time off to be with senior citizens in collaboration with Seng Cheong Youth 

responsibility to give aging individuals the care and attention that they deserve.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

 The Group has always been active in participating and sponsoring festive celebrations with various 

that it creates priceless memories with the members of the society. 

 The Group had also participated in a couple of Blood Donation Campaign organized by the FMM Melaka 
Branch and St. John Ambulance Malaysia.

 Throughout the year, the Group has participated in many sponsorship activities organised by various 
schools and institution of higher education.
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 In May 2019, a Memorandum of Understanding was entered between the Jabatan Penjara Malaysia (“JPM”) 
and Oriental Food Industries Sdn Bhd on a programme called “Program Latihan Bersama Penghuni Penjara”, 
whereby selected inmates eligible for parole will undergo an on the job training programme with the Company. 

 These inmates will initially be trained at non-production and non-critical areas under close supervision of the 

that they need to re-join the workforce and society.

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Haji Abdul Aziz bin Abdul Razak, Timbalan Ketua Pengarah, Penjara Malaysia 
(4th from right), Datuk Son Tong Leong, Group CEO (4th from left)

 After several round of discussions between the parties, including the visit by the Y. Bhg. Dato’ Haji Abdul 
Aziz bin Abdul Razak, Timbalan Ketua Pengarah, Penjara Malaysia, the training programme was successfully 
commenced in June 2019. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 
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YBhg Mr. G. Saminathan A/L  Ganesan, Exco Perpaduan, Sumber Manusia dan Hal Ehwal Pengguna 
(6th from right)

 The Company’s involvement in this programme is in line with the Human Resource Ministry’s recommendation 

from prison. 

 The Group hopes that this training programme where inmates were placed in realistic work environments will give 
them a chance to develop skills that will enhance their potential for rehabilitation and meaningful employment on 
release.

 Over the years, the Group has been hosting paid internship programmes to undergraduates who need to gain 

 There are instances where interns who makes a favourable impression are hired as permanent employees at 
the end of their assignment. 

 Not only do the Group hire the best in the industry to support its operations, it also encourages Malaysians from 

 The Company supports and encourages career growth through Education Assistance Programmes and 
Trainings. Deserving employees are awarded monetary funding to undergo various competency programmes 

undergone training programmes essential to enhance their performance, understanding and success at work.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 
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 OFIH Group believes in equality regardless of race or gender. At OFIH, female employees are given equal 
opportunities to progress and hold important positions in various department and division of the Company. 
Presently, the Group has female employees holding senior management and managerial positions. This serves 
as a source of inspiration to other employees to see female leadership and allows prospective employees as 
well as current employees to see that ascension in the Company is possible. 

 At OFIH, the Top Management recognises the importance of work–life balance that its employee needs between 
time allocated for work and other aspects of life. Therefore, OFIH participated in various in sponsorship drive for 
sport activities to promote healthy and active lifestyle among the employees. 

 At OFIH, teamwork has become its organization’s norm. The Top Management and employee of all level work 
together well to achieve the vision and mission of the Company. 

In closing, OFIH Group is committed towards integrating sustainability in its business by continuous adoption and 
application of effective economic approach, environmentally responsible practices, sound social policies and good 
corporate governance framework throughout its organisation.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) observes the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG 2017”) 
and ensures the highest standards of corporate governance is practiced throughout Oriental Food Industries Holdings 
Bhd’s group of companies (“the Group”) as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and 

The Group’s corporate governance structure has been developed and enhanced based on the principles and 
recommendations of best practices prescribed in the MCCG 2017. The Company has disclosed its application of 
each practice set out in MCCG 2017 in a prescribed format of Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”) and the 

The Board is pleased to inform that the Company has established the following policies which can be viewed at the 

(a) Board Charter 
(b) Code of Conduct
(c) Nomination and Election Process of Board Members
(d) Board Remuneration Policy
(e) Corporate Disclosure Policy 
(f) Whistle-Blowing Policy 
(g) Corporate Social Responsibility, Environmental and Sustainability Policy

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 The Board Charter and Code of Conduct (“The Charter”) adopted by the Board provides guidance to the Board 

governance. The Charter is subject to periodical review to ensure consistency with the Board’s strategic intent 
as well as relevant standards of corporate governance. 

 The Board is also committed to conducting business in accordance with the highest standards of business ethics 
and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Code of Conduct provides guidance for Directors 
regarding ethical and behavioural considerations and/or actions as they address their duties and obligations 
during the appointment.

 The Board is responsible to determine its optimised size in order to carry out its responsibility and authority 

 The Charter will periodically be reviewed and updated in accordance with the needs of the Company and any 
new regulations that may have an impact in discharging the Board’s responsibilities. The Charter was last 
reviewed and approved on 27 May 2019.

one-third (1/3) requirement for Independent Directors to be on the Board. The Board is led by Tan Sri Dato’ 

Chen Chuan, the Group Managing Director.

Group. The role of Chairman and Group Managing Director of the Company are separated to ensure a balance 

and Management ensures proper implementation of policies and strategies as adopted by the Board for the 
business operations of the Group.  
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 The evaluation of potential candidates for new directorship and directors to be nominated for re-election are 
delegated to the Nomination Committee (“NC”) with recommendation being made to the Board for decision. On 

and diligence. Individual members of the Board are required to inform the Chairman before accepting any new 

 The Board composition is governed by the Constitution of the Company. The Board shall comprise of at least 

Furthermore, in order to assert an element of independence and check and balance role to the Board, at least 
two (2) Directors or one third (1/3) of the Board (whichever is higher), shall be independent, in accordance with 
the Main Market Listing Requirements (“Main LR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). 

of the nine (9) years, such Independent Director may continue to serve on the Board subject to the Directors’ re-
designation as a Non-Independent Director. Otherwise, the Board must justify and seeks shareholders’ approval 
to be retained as an Independent Director. As for the retention of an Independent Director above twelve (12) 
years, the Board shall seek shareholders’ approval through the two-tier voting process. 

 The retirement and re-election of Directors are in accordance to the Constitution of the Company, which provides 
that all Directors of the Company, including the Group Managing Director are subject to retirement. At least one 

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.

judgement on issues of strategies, performance, resources and standards of conduct.

 The Board meets at least once in a quarter. The Meeting agendas and a set of Board Papers are circulated at 
least seven (7) days prior to the Board Meetings in a timely manner to ensure that the Directors can peruse the 

 The Company Secretaries organise and attend all Board Meetings to ensure proper records of the proceedings.

 Directors are given access to any information within the Company and are free to seek independent professional 

the advice and services of the Company Secretaries who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures 
are met and in accordance with regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

Board Meetings are as follows: 

 Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain  Chairman/  4/4 100

 Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan Group Managing Director 4/4  100

 The retirement and re-election of Directors are in accordance to the Constitution of the Company, which provides 
that all Directors of the Company, including the Group Managing Director are subject to retirement. At every 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), at least one third (1/3) in number of the Board and who have been longest in 

MCCG 2017, an Independent Director who has served for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years would 
need to seek re-appointment at the AGM. Whereas, if the Board intends to retain the Independent Director after 

process.

 A Director shall remain Independent only if:

i) The independence assessment conducted by the Nomination Committee (with such independent director 
being abstained from the deliberation if he is a member) based on the above procedure and criteria 
for “independence” as prescribed under Paragraph 1.01 and Practice Note 13 of the Main LR on such 
Independent Director determines that the independence of such Independent Director is preserved and is 
not deteriorated in any manner due to passage of time and reported as such to the Board; and

ii) The continuing of such Director as Independent Director is recommended by the Board, based on the 
independence assessment conducted by the Nomination Committee with the results of the independent 

by the shareholders during such general meeting. 

 All Directors seeking for re-election/re-appointment need to be assessed by the Nomination Committee on their 
capability and suitability.
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 The Group acknowledges the importance of continuous education and training to the Board members.  

 Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and/or conferences organised by relevant regulatory authorities 
and professional bodies to keep abreast with the latest developments in the market place and new statutory and 
regulatory requirements.

 Details of trainings attended by the Directors are as follows:-

 

 Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019
 Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019
 Datuk Son Tong Leong ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019
 Datuk Son Tong Eng ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019
 Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019
 Mr. Lim Keat Sear ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019

     Transitional Issues from GST to SST 12.09.2018
     Accounting for Agriculture Sector: Practical App of  18.10.2018
       MFRS141 
     MPERS – Preparation of MPERS Financial Statements 30.10.2018

     ISO 22000:2018 Awareness & Transition Training 14.06.2019

 The Board is also regularly updated by the Company Secretaries on the latest amendments to the Main LR.

 The Board will on a continuing basis evaluate and determine the training needs of each Director, particularly 
on relevant new laws and regulations and essential practices for effective corporate governance and risk 
management to enable the Directors to effectively discharge their duties.

 The following Committees have been established to assist the Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities.  
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 The role of the Risk Management and Audit Committee is to support the Board in overseeing the processes 

Company.

following requirements:

  (a) a majority must be Independent Directors.

  (b) at least one (1) member –

i. must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
ii. if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three (3) 

Accountants Act, 1967; or 

1st Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967.

(c) Alternate Director shall not be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee. 

(d) The members of the Risk Management and Audit Committee shall elect a chairman from amongst 
themselves who shall be an Independent Director. 

  Objectives

a) The principal objectives of the Risk Management and Audit Committee is to assist the Board in 

i) Assessing the risk management policies and procedures and internal control;

c) Determine that the Company has adequate administrative, operational, and internal accounting 
controls and that the Group is operating in accordance with its prescribed procedures, codes of 
conduct and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Management for distribution to shareholders and the general public.

enhance their independence from Management.

f) Provide assistance to the Board in setting and overseeing the Risk Management Framework of the 
Group and regularly assessing such Risk Management Framework to ascertain its adequacy and 
effectiveness.
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 The Nomination Committee was set up by the Board to ensure it has an appropriate balance, size and the 

intended goals and objectives. The nomination and election process of Board Members are set out in the 
Nomination and Election Process of Board Members published in the Company’s website.  

  The members of the Committee are as follows:-

  Chairman : Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock 
     (Independent Non-Executive Director)
  Members : Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain 
     (Independent Non-Executive Director)
     Lim Hwa Yu 
     (Independent Non-Executive Director)
     Lim Keat Sear
     (Non Independent Non-Executive Director)

 The Board delegated the annual assessment of effectiveness of the Board as a whole, individual members 
and its Board Committees to theNomination Committee. The Nomination Committee is required to carry 

process established by the Board and to report annually its assessment of the full Board. 

 The function of the Nomination Committee are summarised as follows:

a) Consider and make recommendations on candidates for directorships proposed by the Group 

c) Assess annually the following for recommendation the Board for approval:-

2016;

  The Remuneration Committee comprises the following members:-

  Chairman : Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain 
     (Independent Non-Executive Director)
  Members : Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock
     (Independent Non-Executive Director)
     Lim Hwa Yu 
     (Independent Non-Executive Director)
     Lim Keat Sear
     (Non Independent Non-Executive Director)

 The function of the Remuneration Committee is to recommend to the Board, the remuneration packages of 

is designated to consider. 

 The remuneration procedures are set out in the Board Remuneration Policy adopted by the Board. The 
Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board and are subject to the approval of the shareholders of the 
Company at the general meeting. 

 In discharging this responsibility, the Committee has obtained the advice of independent professional 

Company.
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 150,000 180,000 2,132,800 731,200 84,000 519,864 3,797,864

200,000 - 72,000 - - - 272,000

 The number of Directors of the Company whose total remuneration fall within the following band:-

 Range of Remuneration       Number of Directors
      

follows:-

268,829 61,940 - 42,635 373,404

The number of Senior Management of the Company whose total remuneration fall within the following band:-
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 All Directors are provided with information on a timely basis. The agenda and Board Papers are circulated to the 

Management. The Board has unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Group as well as to the 
advice and services of the Company Secretaries and independent professional advisers whenever appropriate 

requirements.

                                                                                                     
 Shareholders and investors’ relationship is a matter of importance today. Effective communication will help to 

information on operations, activities and performance of the Group to the shareholders, investors and public via 
the following:-

b) Various announcements made to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

c) The website of the Company which provides the updated information of the Company such as products 
and activities.

 The AGM represents the principal forum for dialogue and interaction with all shareholders. At each AGM, the 
Board presents the progress and performance of the Group’s business and invites shareholders to participate 
in the question and answer session.

G. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

 The Board, assisted by the Risk Management and Audit Committee aims to present a balance and understandable 

and quarterly reports.  

of this Annual Report.

 The Board acknowledges the importance of internal control including risk management both in the strategy and 
operational level. The Board recognises its responsibility for a sound internal control system covering not only 

 The Group’s Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control are set out on pages 39 to 45 of this Annual 
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auditors in seeking their professional advice and ensuring compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. 
The Risk Management and Audit Committee seeks regular assurance on the effectiveness of the internal control 
system through independent appraisal by the auditors in ensuring compliance with the applicable accounting 

Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

 The scope of audit and emphasis are as follows: 

 The Company has adopted a Corporate Disclosure Policy to ensure accurate, clear, timely and complete 
disclosure of material information necessary for informed investing and has taken reasonable steps to ensure 
that all who invest in the Company’s securities enjoy equal access to such information to avoid an individual or 
selective disclosure. 

 Apart from the above, the Company has also implemented a Whistle Blowing Policy programme. Through 
this program, employees are encouraged to discreetly disclose concerns about illegal, unethical or improper 
business conduct within the Company. In this manner, the employees can help the Company to monitor and 
keep track of such illegal, unethical or improper business conduct within the Company which otherwise may not 
be easily detected through normal process or transaction. 

 This policy is designed to facilitate employees to disclose any improper conduct (misconduct or criminal offence) 
through internal channels. Such misconduct or criminal offences include (but not limited to) the following:

i. Fraud;
ii. Bribery;
iii. Abuse of Power;

v. Theft or embezzlement;
vi. Misuse of Company’s Property; and
vii. Non Compliance with Procedure

 This Policy is for the employees to raise the matters in an independent and unbiased manner. Employees 

appropriate steps. 

 This Policy is administered by the Group’s Top Management and overseen by the Risk Management and Audit 
Committee. 
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 The Board is committed to operate its business in accordance with environmental, social and economic 
responsibility. These include working within the laws in order to be innovative and by demonstrating initiative to 
meet the requirements of various stakeholders. 

 The Company strives to achieve sustainable long term balance between meeting its business goals and 
preserving the environment. Its commitments with respect to sustainability are in the areas of workplace, 
marketplace, community and environment. 

 The strategies to promote sustainability and its implementation can be found at the Company’s website. 

 The Company recognises the importance of CSR and has taken a proactive approach wherever possible to 

organisations. 

 The Company also organises educational factory tours for various educational and governmental institutions. 

 Furtherance to the above, in support of the local institutions of higher learning, the Company accepts 
undergraduates to perform their industrial training in various departments at the factories owned by the Company.

 At Company’s level, the Company hosts its annual dinner for all its local and foreign employees to foster good 
relationship and harmonious ties between all level of employees of all races and as a token of recognition from 
the Top Management for the commitment and dedication of the employees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad (“the Company” or “OFIH”) 
acknowledges the importance of maintaining good risk management and internal control system within OFIH and 
its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group”) and is pleased to provide the following statement on the state of the risk 
management and internal control systems which outlines the nature and scope of risk management and internal 

statement disclosed pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of Main Market Listing Requirements and Malaysian Code on 
Corporate Governance. This statement was prepared by taking into account of the Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control: Guidelines for Director and Listed Issuers (“The Guidelines”) pursuant to Practice Note 9 of the 
Main Market Listing Requirements. The scope of this Statement includes OFIH and all operating subsidiaries.

A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

and for reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness so as to safeguard all its stakeholders’ interests and protecting 
the Group’s assets. The Board is responsible for determining the acceptable risk tolerance of the Group as well 
as to articulate and implement risk management and internal control system. The Board delegates the duty of 

review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system within the Group is 
delegated to the Risk Management and Audit Committee by the Board, through its terms of reference approved 
by the Board, in order to provide assurance to the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk 
and control structures and processes of the Group. Through the Risk Management and Audit Committee, the 

and compliance controls. However, in view of the limitations that are inherent in any system of risk management 
and internal controls, the system of risk management and internal control are designed to manage, rather 
than to eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives. Accordingly, the system of risk 
management and internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement of losses and fraud.

 The Board recognises that an important element of a sound risk management and internal control system is to 

Framework in February 2019 with structured risk management structure and processes for the enterprise wide 
risk management activities that are embedded throughout the Group as a second line-of-defence. In addition, 

based quality management system is established and maintained to manage organizational quality risks and 
opportunities in a structured manner.

 The principles, practices and process of the Risk Management Framework established by the Board are, in 
material aspects, guided by ISO 31000:2018 – Risk Management Guidelines. The Risk Management Framework 

Board, Risk Management and Audit Committee (the oversight role), Risk and Sustainability Management Team 
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 The roles and responsibilities of the RSMT includes the following:

a) Implement the risk management policy as approved by the Board;

and communicate methodology to the risk owners;
c) Ensuring that risk strategies adopted are aligned with the Group’s organisational strategies. (e.g. vision/

mission, corporate strategies/goals, etc.), risk management policy & process and risk appetite/tolerance;

required; and
e) Update the Board, through the Risk Management and Audit Committee, on changes to the Key Risk 

taken by management in managing the changes.

a) Manage the risks of the business processes under his/her control;

plans and the status of these plans; and

his/her duty and the importance of the related controls.

activities. Risk assessment, at gross and residual level, are guided by the likelihood rating and impact rating 
established based on the risk tolerance approved by the Board. Based on the risk management process, Risk 

the Board’s immediate attention and risk treatment (including implementing of appropriate control measures) as 
well as for future risk monitoring. As an important risk monitoring mechanism, the Risk and Opportunity Plans 

are reported to the RSMT and Risk Management and Audit Committee for review and its reporting to the Board. 

frequent basis (if circumstances required) and report to the Risk Management and Audit Committee and the 
Board on the results of the review and assessment.

incorporated into the Risk and Opportunity Plans for on-going risk monitoring and assessment. The updated 

under review for its review and deliberation on its adequacy and effectiveness.

 At the strategic level, business plans and business strategies with risks considerations are formulated by the 

strategies are in line with the Group’s risk tolerance. Update of the implementation progress of the approved 
strategies are discussed in subsequent Board meetings for follow-up and review.
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managing the risks within their department. Risk owners are responsible for adequate and effective operational 

of risks and control procedures on a daily basis. Changes in the key business risks faced by the Group or 
emergence of new business risks and the corresponding internal control are discussed during management 
meetings to determine the risk treatment and implementation of effective controls to manage the risk. Critical 
and material changes in the key business risks faced by the Group or emergence of new material business risks 
are highlighted to the RSMT for the decision on the risk treatment and its implementation as well as its reporting 
to the Risk Management and Audit Committee and the Board.

 The monitoring of the risk management by the Group is enhanced by the internal audits carried out by the 

based on the internal plan approved by the Risk Management and Audit Committee.

review and up to the date of approval of this statement.

 The key features of the Group’s internal control systems are described below:

 The role, functions, composition, operation and processes of the Board are guided by a formal Board 

preserve the independence of the Board from the Management.

 Board Committees (i.e. Risk Management and Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination 
Committee) established to carry out duties and responsibilities delegated by the Board, are governed by 
their respective written terms of reference.

 Meetings of Board of Directors and respective Board Committees are carried out on a scheduled basis 

review and approval after taking into account the risk consideration and responses.

 Integrity and ethical values are enshrined in a formal Code of Conduct established and approved by 
the Board. The formal code forms the foundation of integrity and ethical value of the Group. Integrity 

carry out their duties and responsibilities assigned are also established and formalised in the Employee 
Handbook.

 Formal Whistle-Blowing Policy is put in place by the Board and overseen by the Risk Management and 

Conduct, legal issues and accounting or audit matters.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

 The Group has a formal organisation structure, with clear lines of reporting and accountability, in place 

are met. A formal Human Resource Policy Manual is put in place by the Management to ensure that 

delegated while accountability of performance and controls are assigned accordingly to competent staffs 

accountability of performance and controls for key positions are further enhanced via the job descriptions 
established by the Management.

 The authorisation requirements for key processes are incorporated in the control documentations and 
stated in the Group’s policies and procedures.

 The Group has documented policies and procedures that are periodically reviewed and updated to ensure its 

internal control requirements.

 The Group has put in place a formal Human Resource Policy Manual and Employee Handbook throughout 

their knowledge and skill sets.

 At operational level, clear reporting lines are established across the Group and operation and management 
reports are prepared for dissemination to relevant personnel for effective communication of critical 

deliberation and decision on a timely basis.

i.e. computerized enterprise resources planning systems, secured intranet, electronic mail system and 
modern telecommunication, so that operation data and management information can be communicated 
timely and securely to dedicated personnel within the Group for decision making and for communication 

and decision making. The management and board meetings are held for effective two-way communication 
of information at different levels of management and the Board.
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a. Daily management meetings of Head of Departments are held to review operational performance of key 
divisions/departments within the Group.

Directors.

management, and subsequently reported to the Board.
d. Internal audit conducted by Outsourced Internal Audit function (which is reporting directly to the Risk 

function assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control in relation to 

Group to the Risk Management and Audit Committee based on the results of the audit work performed. 
Recommendations for improvement are proposed by the internal audit function to minimise the potential 

health and environment by independent consultants engaged by the Group and/or relevant regulatory 

the fourth-line-of-defence.

D. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

 The Group relies on the internal audit function as the third line-of-defence to provide the Board and the 
Management with the required level of assurance that the governance, risk management, internal control 
system is operating adequately and effectively in mitigating organisational risks to achieve the Group’s corporate 

Advisory Sdn Bhd, which reports directly to the Risk Management and Audit Committee. The appointment and 
resignation of the outsourced internal audit function as well as the proposed audit fees are subject to review and 
approval by the Risk Management and Audit Committee for its reporting to the Board for ultimate approval.

Auditor accredited by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global and a professional member of the Institute of 
Internal Auditors Malaysia. The internal audits are carried out, in material aspects, in accordance with the 
International Professional Practices Framework established by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global. The 
outsourced internal audit function is manned by one (1) engagement director, three (3) managers/assistant 

for review before recommending to the Board for approval. Scheduled internal audits were performed by the 
outsourced internal audit function based on the approved internal audit plan, with any subsequent change 
to the approved plan and scope referred to the Risk Management and Audit Committee for review and its 
recommendation to the Board for approval prior to the commencement of the audit.

 The internal control review procedures performed by the outsourced internal audit function are designed to 
understand, document and evaluate risks and related controls to determine the adequacy and effectiveness 
of governance, risk and control structures and processes and to formulate recommendations for improvement 
thereon. The internal audit procedures applied principally consist of process evaluations through interviews with 
relevant personnel involved in the process under review, review of the Standard Operating Procedures and/or 

respective audit areas through the review of the samples selected based on sample size are calculated through 
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management, disaster recovery management, performance management and evaluation, budgetary system, 
Code of Conduct, remuneration policy and procedures, risk management policy and procedures, Board and Senior 
Management governance structure, delegation of authorities, investment appraisal/divestment management, 

corruption and bribery policy and procedures, fraud policy and procedures and sustainability management 
of the Group as well as purchasing planning, purchasing requisition and processing, supplier management, 

operations located in Malaysia.

recommendations, management responses and action plans were presented by the outsourced internal audit 
function to the Risk Management and Audit Committee for review and deliberation during the Risk Management 
and Audit Committee meeting. Updates on the status of implementation of management action plans as 

Risk Management and Audi Committee to ensure action plans were satisfactorily implemented to address the 

the review and deliberation to the Board in order for the Board to discharge its responsibility to ensure that the 
risk management and internal controls are in place and working adequately and effectively to manage the risks 
within the risk tolerance of the Group and for regulatory compliance.

to RM26,000.

development of the outsourced internal audit function was also reported to the Risk Management and Audit 
Committee for their review and assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the outsourced internal audit 
function. Based on the above review and reporting mechanism as well as review of the works performed and 

Committee is of the view that the scope, functions (including independence), competency, resources, authorities 
granted to the outsourced internal audit function as well as internal audit plan and processes are adequate 
to provide the Risk Management and Audit Committee with reasonable assurance that governance, risk and 
control structures and processes of the Group is adequate and effective and that the results of the internal audit 
plan, processes or investigation undertaken is adequately communicated to the Risk Management and Audit 
Committee and appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the outsourced internal audit function, 
if any.

 In addition to the above, for the purpose of compliance with ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 22000 Quality Management 
Systems, internal quality audits are carried out by in-house independent personnel and surveillance audit is 

procedures.

management and internal control systems have operated adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, to 

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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F. OPINION AND CONCLUSION

were reviewed and deliberated by the Board, including, but not limited to, the adequacy and effectiveness of 

as the monitoring and review mechanism stipulated above coupled with the assurance provided by Managing 

audit function, other professionals and regulatory bodies and reported to the Board, the Board is of the opinion 
that the risk management and internal control systems are satisfactory and have not resulted in any material 
losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s annual report.

 The Board is committed towards maintaining an effective risk management and internal control systems 
throughout the Group and where necessary put in place appropriate plans to further enhance the Group’s risk 
management and internal control systems. Notwithstanding this, the Board will continue to evaluate and manage 

challenging business environment.

scope set out in Audit and Assurance Practice Guides (AAPGs) 3, Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to 
Report on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in the Annual Report issued by 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 
March 2019, and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that cause them to believe that 
the Statement intended to be included in the annual report of the Group, in all material aspects: has not been 
prepared in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the SRMICG or is factually 

connection with their compliance with the listing requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and for no 

person other than the Board of Directors in respect of any aspect of this report.

and Internal Control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Group’s risk management and internal control system including the assessment and opinion by the Board of 
Directors and management thereon.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

As at the date of this Annual Report, the composition of the Risk Management and Audit Committee (“the Committee”) 
is as follows:

Mr. Lim Hwa Yu
(Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director)

Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain 
(Member, Independent Non-Executive Director)

Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock
(Member, Independent Non-Executive Director)

The composition of the Audit and Risk Management Committee complies with Chapter 15 of the Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”).

The Secretaries of Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad, Ms. Karina Chong Mei Ying, Ms. Chan Sau Leng and 
Cik Ruzeti Emar Binti Mohd Rosli are also Secretaries of the Committee.

The Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors amongst the Directors of the Company and the following 
requirements must be met:-

(a) The Committee must consist of not less than three (3) members;

Directors;

(c)  The Chairman of the Committee must be an Independent Director;

(d) At least one (1) member of the risk management and audit committee –

 i. must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or

ii. if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three (3) years’ 

Accountants Act 1967; or

(“Bursa Securities”).
 
(e)  Alternate director shall not be appointed as a member of the Committee. 

(f)  The members of the Committee shall elect a chairman from amongst themselves who shall be an independent 
director. 

(g) In the event of any vacancy in the Committee resulting in the non-compliance of subparagraphs 15.09(1) and 
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The Board had on 27 May 2019 reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Committee in line with the provisions of 
the Listing Requirements, and the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 and had included the following 
duties and responsibilities of the Committee, and where appropriate, the Committee shall report to the Board on the 
following:-

1. To review the maintenance of an effective accounting system and controls in the business process.

2. To review the Company’s accounting policies and reporting requirements to ensure compliance with the relevant 
laws and standards.

3. To review Company’s compliance with relevant law and Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities.

the Management.

6. To review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit functions and 
the necessary authority to carry out its work.

to the Audit plan and Audit report.

10. To review the internal audit programme, the results of the internal audit programme, processes or investigation 
undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the internal auditors.

focusing particularly on:

(a) changes in or implementation of major accounting policy changes;

(c) compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirement.

12. To review the contents of the Annual Report prior to submission to the Board.

group including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity.

not suitable for re-appointment.

16. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management, internal control and management information 
systems, including compliance with applicable laws, rules, corporate governance requirements and guidelines. 

17. To review the Group’s risk management policy and implementation of the risk management framework.

18. To review and recommend to the Board, the Director’s Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control and 
any changes thereto.

com.my
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

provided below:

Meetings shall be conducted at least four (4) times a year, or more frequently as circumstances dictate.

A majority of the members, who are Independent Directors, present being not less than two (2), shall form a quorum.

The attendance records of each member are as follows:-

Mr. Lim  Hwa Yu   4/4
Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock 3/4
Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain  4/4

when deemed necessary, the Committee may invite the Board members or any other person to be in attendance to 

Directors.

The Committee carried out its duties for the year in accordance with its Terms of Reference. 

Group prior to submission to the Board for its consideration and approval focusing particularly on changes in or 

matters, unusual events, transactions, judgements made by Management and other legal requirements, and the 

accounting policies had been implemented; applicable accounting standards approved by MASB and provisions of 

by Management had been assessed; and impact of any changes to the accounting policies and new accounting 
standards had been assessed and adopted, where relevant.



49

ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD 389769-M   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Sdn Bhd to undertake independent, objective and systematic reviews of the internal control systems to evaluate its 
adequacy and effectiveness. The outsourced Internal Auditors conduct the internal audit reviews according to the 
internal audit plan approved by the Committee.  

The Committee carried out the following functions:

(a) Reviewed and approved the annual audit plan to ensure adequate scope and coverage on the activities of the 
Group, taking into consideration the assessment of key risk areas and ensured that key and high risk areas were 
audited annually. 

(b) Reviewed the effectiveness of audit programmes, and the adequacy and suitability of the resource requirements 
and skill levels of the Internal Auditors for the year and assessed the performance of the Internal Audit Function. 

(c) Reviewed the internal audit reports, audit recommendations made and Management’s response to these 
recommendations and actions taken to improve the system of internal control and procedures recommendations. 
Where appropriate, the Audit and Risk Management Committee had directed Management to rectify and improve 

for improvement. 

(d) Monitored the implementation of the audit recommendations to ensure that all key risks and controls had been 
addressed. 

(e) Reviewed recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature reports on a quarterly basis for 
compliance with the review procedures outlined in the Shareholders’ Mandate and ensured that the transactions 
were undertaken on an arm’s length basis and on normal commercial terms which were consistent with the 
Group’s usual business practices and policies, and on terms not more favourable to the related parties than 
those generally available to the public and were not to the detriment of the minority shareholders. 

(f) Reviewed the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which provided an overview of the state of 
internal controls within the Group prior to the Board’s approval for inclusion in the Annual Report. The Statement 

control in place throughout the Group as described in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, 
was sound and effective, providing reasonable assurance that the structure and operation of controls were 
appropriate for the Group’s operations. The Committee also acknowledged that implementation measures were 
continuously taken to strengthen the system of risk management and internal control so as to safeguard the 
interests of stakeholders including shareholders’ investments, and the Group’s assets.

(g) Approved a budget of RM26,000 for the Internal Audit Function to effectively carry out its audit plan for the 

(h) Approved the Risk Management and Audit Committee Report and recommended the same for Board’s approval 
for inclusion in the Annual Report.

and approach, audit plan, key audit areas and relevant technical pronouncements and accounting standards 
issued by MASB, and regulating requirements applicable to the Group; and the processes and controls in place 

Group and of the Company.
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and evaluation of the system of internal and accounting controls together with Management’s response to the 

taken by Management.

the year in accordance with the policies and procedures in place, vide a set of questionnaires covering the 

knowledge; independence and objectivity; audit scope and planning; audit fees; and their communications with 
the Risk Management and Audit Committee. The Risk Management and Audit Committee had received from 

safeguards and procedures to address threats or perceived threats to their independence and objectivity, and 
that they were in compliance with the independence requirements set out in the By-Laws (On Professional 
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) for Professional Accountants (By-Laws) as adopted by the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants.

being present to discuss matters in relation to their review.

Compliance with laws, regulations, codes and standards.

a) The Committee monitored the year-to-date progress on the achievement of the Company my reviewing 
the performance of the Company on a quarterly basis. The Audit and Risk Management Committee sought 

b) The Committee provided assurance to the Board on the risk reporting and review activities that took place during 

(a)  Reviewed related party transactions entered into by the Group and ensured that the transactions undertaken 
were in the best interest of the Group, fair, reasonable and on normal commercial terms, and not detrimental to 
the interest of the minority shareholders, and recommended the same for approval of the Board. 

(b)  Reviewed the annual Shareholders’ Mandate in relation to recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or 
trading nature for shareholders’ approval to undertake transactions which are recurrent, of a revenue or trading 
nature and which are necessary for the day-to-day operations of the Group with related parties (“RRPTs”). 

favourable to the related parties than those generally available to the public and were not to the detriment of the 
minority shareholders and that the Group had in place adequate procedures and processes to monitor, track 
and identify RRPTs in a timely and orderly manner, and such procedures and processes were reviewed on a 
yearly basis or whenever the need arose. The Management had given assurance to the Committee that related 
party transactions and mandate for recurrent related party transactions were in compliance with the Listing 
Requirements and the Group’s policies and procedures.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

As required under the Companies Act, 2016, the Directors of Oriental Food Industries Holdings Berhad have made a 

have been drawn up in accordance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true 

year;

Group and the Company will continue in business.

Additionally, the Directors relied on the system of internal controls to ensure that the information generated for the 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 24 July 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
 

 
 
RESULTS 

         Group   Company 
         RM   RM 

 

 
 
DIVIDENDS 
 

 
          RM 
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DIRECTORS 
 

 

Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan** 
Datuk Son Tong Leong** 
Datuk Son Tong Eng** 
Lim Keat Sear 

 

 
 
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
 

 

 

         Group   Company 
         RM   RM 
 

  

 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

 
                                         Number of ordinary shares
        1.4.2018   Acquired  Sold  31.3.2019 

The Company

Direct interest:

 
Deemed interest: 

# 

 

#  interest by virtue of shares held by children

 

 
 
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 
 

 

adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
AUDITORS 
 

        Group Company
        RM RM

 
 

Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan Datuk Son Tong Leong 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

STATUTORY DECLARATION

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Datuk Seri Son Chen Chuan Datuk Son Tong Leong
 

     
     
     
     
     
Subscribed and solemnly declared by 

Datuk Son Tong Leong  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Opinion 
 

 
Basis for opinion 
 

 
Independence and other ethical responsibilities 
 

 
Key Audit Matters 
 

 
 

 

 

account comprises of high volume of transactions and there are many considerations to be considered upon adoption 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

 

pertaining to the timing for the recognition of revenue and the amount of revenue recognised;

recognition is appropriate;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

 

 

 
 
OTHER MATTERS 
 

Ernst & Young H’ng Boon Keng 

 



ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD 389769-M   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2019

61

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

     Group  Company
     Note  2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

Revenue

 
Other items of expense 

 
Other comprehensive loss: 
Net loss on equity investment designated 
  at fair value through other comprehensive 

Total comprehensive income for the year, 
  net of tax
 
Attributable to: 

 
Earnings per share attributable to owners 
  of the parent (sen per share) 
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

     Group  Company
     Note  2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

Assets 
 
Non-current assets 

 

 

Current assets 

 

Total assets
 

Equity and liabilities 
 
Current liabilities 

  

 
Net current assets/(liabilities)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

     Group  Company
     Note  2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

Non-current liabilities

 

 
Total liabilities
 
Net assets
 

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 

 
Total equity
 
Total equity and liabilities
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

  Non-distributable  
    Equity    Fair Value  
    attributable    Reserve for  
    to owners of   Financial   Distributable   Non- 
Group  Equity,  the parent,  Share  Assets at   Retained   controlling 
 Note  total   total   Capital   FVOCI   Earnings   interest 
2019   RM   RM   RM   RM   RM   RM 

Opening balance at 1 April 2018
 
Effect of adoption of new 
  accounting standards

Opening balance at 1 April 2018 
  (restated) 
 
Total comprehensive income
 
Transactions with owners 

Closing balance at 31 March 2019

2018 
 
Opening balance at 1 April 2017
 
Total comprehensive income
 
Transaction with owners 

Closing balance at 31 March 2018

        Distributable 
Company      Equity,   Share   Retained 
    Note  total   capital   earnings 
2019      RM   RM   RM 

Opening balance at 1 April 2018
 
Total comprehensive income
 
Transaction with owners 

   
Closing balance at 31 March 2019
   
2018 
 
Opening balance at 1 April 2017
 
Total comprehensive income
 
Transactions with owners 

   
Closing balance at 31 March 2018
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

     Group  Company
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

Operating activities

 

  in working capital
 

 

 
Investing activities 

 
 investing activities
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

     Group  Company
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

Financing activities 

 

 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and  
  cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March (Note 24)
   

 
 
       1 April   Financing    31 March 

       RM   RM   RM   RM’000 

Group 

 

 
Company 

 

       1 April   Financing    31 March 

       RM   RM   RM   RM’000 

Group 

 
Company 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information 
 

 

 

 
 
2. Basis of preparation 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 3.1 Basis of consolidation 
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3.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

 

 

 
3.2 Business combinations and goodwill 
 

measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and 
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 3.4 Fair value measurement 
 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
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 3.4 Fair value measurement (continued) 
 

 

 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and 
 

 

 

 
 3.5 Revenue  
 
  MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 
 

 
(a) Sales of goods and property 
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 3.5 Revenue (continued)
 
  MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 
 
  (a) Sales of goods and property (continued) 
 

(i) Variable consideration 
 

The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly 

 
  
 

are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included 

 
  
 

on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the 

 

 

 
  (b) Contract balances
 

(i) Contract assets 
 

 
(ii) Trade receivables 
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 3.5 Revenue (continued) 
 
  MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 
 
  (b) Contract balances (continued) 
 

(iii) Contract liabilities
 

 
  (c) Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return 
 

(i)  Right of return assets 
 

 
(ii) Refund liabilities 
 

 
 3.6 Other income 
 

 
(i) Dividend income 
 

 
(ii) Interest income 
 

 
(ii) Rental income 
 

incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on 
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 3.7 Taxes 
 

(i) Current income tax 
 

 

 
(ii) Deferred tax 
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 3.7 Taxes (continued) 
 

(ii) Deferred tax (continued) 
 

 
(iii) Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) 
 

 

 

 

 
(iv) Sales and Services Tax (“SST”) 
 

 

 

 

 
 3.8 Foreign currencies 
 

 
 Transactions and balances
 

 

 
 Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of 
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 3.9 Cash dividend 
 

 
 3.10 Property, plant and equipment 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 3.11 Leases 
 

 
(i) Group as a lessee
 

 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD 389769-M   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2019

76

 
 3.11 Leases (continued) 
 

(i) Group as a lessee (continued)
 

 

 
(ii) Group as a lessor 
 

lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on 

 
 3.12 Borrowing costs 
 

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 

 
 3.13 Investment properties 
 

 

 

 
 3.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
 

 
  (i) Financial assets 
 
   (a) Initial recognition and measurement 
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 3.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
  (i) Financial assets (continued) 
 
   (a) Initial recognition and measurement (continued) 

 

 

 

 
   (b) Subsequent measurement 
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 3.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
  (i) Financial assets (continued) 
 
   (b) Subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
     
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near 
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 3.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
  (i) Financial assets (continued) 
 
   (b) Subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

 

 

investments are also recognised as other income in the statement of comprehensive income 

 
(c) Derecognition 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
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 3.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

 

 

 

 
  (iii) Financial liabilities 
 

(a) Initial recognition and measurement 
 

 

 

 
(b) Subsequent measurement 
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 3.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
  (iii) Financial liabilities (continued)

   (b) Subsequent measurement (continued)
 

 
 

 

 

 
(c) Derecognition
 

 

 

 
 3.15 Inventories 
 

 

 
  (a) Raw materials
 

 
(b) Finished goods and work in progress

and
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 3.15 Inventories (continued)  
 
  (c) Completed commercial properties and property development cost

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

impairment loss is revversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the 
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 3.17 Cash and short-term deposits 
 

 

 
3.18 Provisions 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 3.20 Subsidiaries  
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 3.21 Share capital and share issuance expenses 
 

 

 
 3.22 Segment reporting 
 

 
 
4. Changes in accounting policies 
 

 

 
     Effective for annual 
     periods beginning 
 Description  on or after 

 

 
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
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4. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 
 
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

 
     1 April 2018
     RM
 
 Assets 

 
 Equity 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 (ii)  Impairment  
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4. Changes in accounting policies (continued)
 
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
 
 (ii)  Impairment (continued)  
 

 
     Allowance for 
     impairment under   ECL under
     MFRS 139 as at  Remeasure- MFRS 9 as at
     31 March 2018 ment 1 April 2018 
     RM RM RM
 

 

 MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 

 

 

 

 

     1 April 2018
     RM
 
 Assets 

 
 Liabilities 

 
 Equity
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4. Changes in accounting policies (continued)
 
 MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

 
(a) Sale of goods with variable consideration
 

 

 

liability and an asset for the right to recover products from a customer separately in the statement of 

 

 

 
 (b) Rendering of delivery services 
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5. Standards issued but not yet effective 
 

 
     Effective for annual 
     periods beginning 
 Description  on or after 

 

 
 MFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to MFRS 9) 
 

 

 
 MFRS 16 Leases 
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5. Standards issued but not yet effective (continued) 
 
 MFRS 16 Leases (continued) 
 

 

 

 
 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 
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5. Standards issued but not yet effective (continued) 
 

IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (continued)

 

 

 

rates; and
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
(i) Judgements 
 

 
  
 

 

 

The delivery services are a promise to transfer services in the future and are part of the negotiated 

 

presence of the goods and delivery services together in this contract do not result in any additional or 
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 (i) Judgements (continued) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
(ii) Estimates and assumptions
 
 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 

 
 Useful life of plant and machinery 
 
 The costs of plant and machinery for the manufacture of snack food and confectioneries are depreciated 
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 (ii) Estimates and assumptions (continued)

  
 

 

 

 
 Inventories valuation 
 

 
 
7. Revenue 
 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 Revenue: 

  

 
 Right of return assets and refund liabilities: 

 

 
 
 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD 389769-M   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2019

93

7. Revenue (continued) 
 

 
       Sales of  
       snack food  
       and   Property   Investment  
       confectioneries   development   holding   Total 
 31 March 2019    RM   RM   RM   RM 
 
 Revenue: 

 

 

 
 31 March 2018 
 
 Revenue: 

 

  

 
 

8. Other income

      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 
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9. Finance costs 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

 
 

 

 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 

      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 
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12. Directors’ remuneration 
 

 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 

 

13. Income tax  
 
  
 

 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 Statements of comprehensive income: 

 

  

 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD 389769-M   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2019

96

13. Income tax (continued)

 

 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 

 

 
 

14. Earnings per share 
 
 (a) Basic 

 

 
       Group  
          2019   2018 
 

 

 

 

 (b) Diluted 
 

 The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as the Company does not have 
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15. Property, plant and equipment
 
        Furniture, 

 Group   buildings   Renovation   machinery   vehicles   equipment   progress   Total 
     RM   RM   RM   RM   RM   RM   RM 

 Cost

 Transfer from other

 At 31 March 2018 
   and 1 April 2018 

   from Investment 

 Transfer from other 

 At 31 March 2019

 Accumulated 
   depreciation 
 
 At 1 April 2017
 Depreciation 
   charge for the 

 At 31 March 2018 
   and 1 April 2018
 Depreciation 
  charge for the 

   from Investment 

 At 31 March 2019

 Net carrying amount 
 
 At 31 March 2018

 At 31 March 2019
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 
 * Land and buildings 

       Freehold   Leasehold  
 Group     land   land   Buildings   Total 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 Cost 
 
 At 1 April 2017

 At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018

 At 31 March 2019

 Accumulated depreciation 
 
 At 1 April 2017

 At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018

 At 31 March 2019

 Net carrying amount 
 
 At 31 March 2018
 
 At 31 March 2019
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16. Investment properties

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 Cost: 

 
 Accumulated depreciation: 

 Net carrying amount
    

 

 

 
 The fair value is estimated by the directors of the Company based on a valuation conducted by independent 

 
       Range  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 
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17. Investment in subsidiaries 

       Company  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

 
       Proportion (%) of 
 Name of subsidiaries Principal activities   ownership interest 
      2019 2018 

 

 
 
 

      

18. Investment securities 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

 The investment in unquoted equity instruments represents ordinary shares that are not quoted on any active 

 
 
19. Land held for property development

       Group  
         2019   2018 
 Cost:       RM   RM
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20. Investment properties under construction 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

 

 

 
 
21. Inventories 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 Cost 
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22. Trade and other receivables  

      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 Trade receivables 

 
 Other receivables 

 

 

 

 (a) Trade receivables 
 

 
   
 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 
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22. Trade and other receivables (continued)

 (a) Trade receivables (continued)
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
23. Other current assets 

      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 
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24. Cash and bank balances 

      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 

 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 

 
 
25. Loans and borrowings 

      Group  
       2019   2018 
      Maturity   RM   RM 

 Current  
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25. Loans and borrowings (continued)

      Group  
       2019   2018 
      Maturity   RM   RM 

 Non-current   
 

 

 

 

 
       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

  

 

 
 

 
 
26. Trade and other payables 

      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 Trade payables

 
 Other payables 
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26. Trade and other payables (continued)

 (a) Trade payables 
 

 
 (b) Other payables 
 

 
 
27. Contract liabilities 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

      
    
    
28. Deferred tax liabilities
 

 
      Deferred tax     
      liabilities   Deferred tax assets    

      Property,   Unabsorbed   Unabsorbed   
      plant and   reinvestment   capital   
      equipment   allowances   allowances   Others   Total 
 Group    RM   RM   RM   RM   RM 

 At 1 April 2017 

 At 31 March 2018 and 
   1 April 2018

 At 31 March 2019
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29. Share capital and reserve
 
 (a) Share Capital

     Group and Company
     Number of ordinary shares  Amount
       2019   2018   2019   2018  
         RM   RM 
 

 

 
 Implementation of Companies Act 2016
 

 

 
 

 

       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

  Net loss on equity investment designated at fair value  through other 

 

 
30. Retained earnings 
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31. Related party transactions
 
 (a) Sale and purchase of goods and services  
 

 
         2019   2018 
   Group      RM   RM 

  Transactions with a company in which a director has interest: 

 

 
  Company   
 
  Transaction with a subsidiary: 

 

 (b) Compensation of key management personnel 
 

 
 
32. Commitments 
 
 (a) Capital commitments 
 
       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

 

 

 

 (b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee 
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32. Commitments (continued) 
 
 (b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee (continued) 
 

 
       Group  
         2019   2018 
         RM   RM 

  

 
 

 
 

 
     Note 
 

 

 
        Fair value measurement using 

       Quoted    

       active   observable   unobservable  
       market   inputs   inputs  
      Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total 

       RM   RM   RM   RM 

  At 31 March 2019 
 
  Assets measured at fair value: 

 
  Assets for which fair value information 
    is disclosed: 
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        Fair value measurement using 

       Quoted    

       active   observable   unobservable  
       market   inputs   inputs  
      Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total 

       RM   RM   RM   RM 

  At 31 March 2018 
 
  Assets measured at fair value: 

 
  Assets for which fair value information 
    is disclosed: 

 

 

 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and 
 

 

 

 

 
     Note 
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 (a) Interest rate risk 
 

 

 

 

 
      Effect on Group’s 

         RM   RM  
 

 

 (b) Foreign currency risk
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 (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
 
 Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
 

 
      Increase/(decrease)  

      before tax
         2019   2018
         RM   RM  
 

 

 (c) Credit risk
 

 

 

 

 
(i) Trade receivables 
 

 

 
 

 

 
(iii) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 
 
 Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed 
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 (c) Credit risk (continued) 
 

(iv) Financial assets that are either past due or impaired 
 

 
 (d) Liquidity risk 
 

 

 

 
        Within   One to  

        RM   RM   RM  

  Group 
 
  Financial liabilities: 

 

 

  Company 
 
  Financial liability

 
 
  As at 31 March 2018 
 
  Group 
 
  Financial liabilities: 

 

 
 
  Company 
 
  Financial liability: 
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35. Capital management 
 

 

 

 
      Group  Company 
       2019   2018   2019   2018 
       RM   RM   RM   RM 

 

 

 

 
 

36. Segment information 
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36. Segment information (continued)

     Sales      Per 

      confectioneries   development   holding   eliminations   Notes   statements 
 31 March 2019   RM   RM   RM   RM    RM 

 Revenue: 

 Results: 

 Assets: 

 Segment liabilities

 31 March 2018
 
 Revenue: 

 Results: 

 Assets: 

 Segment liabilities
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36. Segment information (continued) 
 

 

 
         2019   2018
         RM   RM  
 

  

 

 
         2019   2018
         RM   RM  
 

 

 
 
 

 
       Revenues 
         2019   2018
         RM   RM  
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37. Dividends 

   
       Group and Company
         2019   2018
         RM   RM  
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Distribution of Shareholders

 No. of  No. of
Size of Shareholdings Shareholders % Shares %

 1,876 100.00 240,000,000 100.00

Thirty Largest Shareholders as per Record of Depositors as at 28 June 2019

  Total No. of
No. Name of Shareholders Shares Held %

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Thirty Largest Shareholders as per Record of Depositors as at 28 June 2019 (continued)

  Total No. of
No. Name of Shareholders Shares Held %
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Substantial Shareholders 

Name                                                                           Direct interest                                 Deemed Interest 
 No. of % No. of %
 Shares Held  Shares Held

#

 

Notes:

Company;
 Deemed interested in the shares held by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Syarikat Perniagaan Chong 

 Deemed interested in the shares held by virtue of its substantial shareholdings in Summer Legend via its interest 

Directors Shareholdings

Name                                                                           Direct interest                                 Deemed Interest 
 No. of % No. of %
 Shares Held  Shares Held

#

Notes:

Company;

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS



ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD 389769-M   I   ANNUAL REPORT 2019

121

LIST OF PROPERTIES

No. Description, Existing Use,
Age of Building and Built Up 
Area

Location Land Area 
Square 
Metres)

per unit

Tenure

Leasehold 

Leasehold 

Leasehold 

Leasehold 

Leasehold

Date of 
Acquisition

Net Book 
Value as at 
31.03.2019

(RM)
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

No. Description, Existing Use,
Age of Building and Built Up 
Area

factory building

The age of the buildings are 

Location Land Area 
Square 
Metres)

 

 

 

per unit

 

Tenure Date of 
Acquisition

Net Book 
Value as at 
31.03.2019

(RM)
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OTHER INFORMATION

1. Share Buyback

2. Audit and Non-Audit Fees

        Group Company
        (RM) (RM)

 

3. Material Contracts

4. Recurrent Related Parties Transactions





I/We 
(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of
(Full address)

being a Member/Members of ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD hereby appoint * the Chairman of the meeting or

(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of 
(Full address)

or failing him/her of 
(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of 
(Full address)

FORM OF PROXY
ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Company No : 389769-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. Ordinary Business For Against

Resolution 1

As Special Business

1.

Resolution 22.

First name Proxy  %
Second name Proxy  %
 100%

In case of a vote taken by a show of hands, the First Proxy shall vote on *my/our behalf. *Strike out whichever is not desired.

As witness my hand day of 2019.
Signature

No. of ordinary shares held
CDS Account No.

as * my/our proxy/proxies to attend and vote for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be 
held at Tiara Banquet Hall, Tiara Melaka Golf and Country Club, Jalan Gapam, Bukit Katil, 75760 Melaka on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 
at 2.30 p.m. and at every adjournment thereof to vote as indicated below:

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM350,000.00 for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2019

Resolution 65. To approve the continuation in office of Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Resolution 76.

To approve the continuation in office of Mr. Lim Hwa Yu as an Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company.

Resolution 87.

To approve the continuation in office of Datuk Jeffery Ong Cheng Lock as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Resolution 98. To authorise the Directors to issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the 
Companies Act, 2016.

Resolution 109. To approve the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party 
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature.

Resolution 1110. To approve the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority

(Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided above on how you wish your vote to be cast. If you do not do so, the proxy will vote or 
abstain from voting at this discretion.)
The proportion of my holdings to be represented by my *proxy/proxies are as follows:-

To approve the proposed payment of Directors’ remuneration and benefits (excluding 
Directors’ fees) up to an amount of RM135,000.00 to the Directors with effect from 29 
August 2019 until the next Annual General Meeting

Resolution 54. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company for the financial year 
ending 31 March 2020 and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Resolution 3
Resolution 4

3. To re-elect the following Directors, each of whom retires by rotation in accordance with 
Article 75 of the Constitution of the Company:-
3.1 Tan Sri Dato’ Azizan Bin Husain 
3.2 Mr Lim Hwa Yu

Notes:
1. In regard of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 20 August 2019 (“General Meeting Record of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend 

and vote at the Meeting.
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. There shall be 

no restriction as to the qualifications of the proxy.
3. A member may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend at the same meeting. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the proxies shall not be valid unless the member specifies 

the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
4. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), 

there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
5. The instrument appointing a proxy in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointor or his attorney and in the case of a corporation, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies 

must be under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
6. The instrument appointing proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a poll.
7. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office at Level 8, Symphony House, Block D13, Pusat Dagangan Dana 1, Jalan PJU 1A/46, 47301 Petaling Jaya, 

Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof as Paragraph 8.29(A) of the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad requires all resolutions set out in the Notice of General Meeting to be put to vote by poll.

8. Proxy appointed to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the meeting. 
9. Personal Data Privacy:  
 By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the members accepts and agrees to the Personal Data Privacy terms set out in the Notice of AGM dated 31 July 2019.
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